CHAPTER VIIL.

THE GUNTOOR CIRCAR, BAZALET JUNG, AND THE NIZAM.
‘THE ORIGINAL POLICY AND INSTRUCTIONS OF THE
GOVERNOR-GENERAL, 1775-1777. |

WE may now proceed to consider those public
measures which have been i*epresénted as bearing
upon the general affairs of India, and to which
it was originally sought to attribute, in great
part, if not entirely, what was called the great

~confederacy, which resulted in the invasion 6f
the Carnatic.

Before entering upon these charges of the
Bill, it is important to notice, that in later times
it has been still further sought to criminate Sir
Thomas Ttumbold by laying to his charge the
reduction of the French fortress Mahé. This it

'a,ppears afforded- Hyder Ali a subject of .com-
“plaint, of which he availed himself in order to
Justify the execution of projects which many cir-
cumstances concur in proving had been deter-
mined on long before. Ascribing this measure,
howeve., especially to Sir Thomas Rumbold is-a
late notion. Nobody at the time laid the responsi-
bility upon him. When the war with France
was declared, the news was communicated to
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Madras through Bombay, and thence to Bengal.
1t is a fact well authontlcated that it was deter-
mined in England that all the French settle-
ments should be*reduced, and instructions arrived
immediately gt Madras to begin with the capture
of Pondicherry, if it was considered “they had
force sufficient to accomplish it. |

That the expedition against Mahé was not in-
considerately resolved upon, will appear from
some extracts which are here given from the
Minutes of the President and of Sir Eyre
Coote :— |

November, 1778. —¢ The President recommends
to the serious consideration of the Board several
points before any expedition should be set on
foot for the reduction of Mahé.” Among others,
“Whether it will not be prudent t® wait until
we hear from Hyder Ali, and until we I;z;.ve
more certain accounts of the disposition of the
Rajahs whose countries border upon Mahé, and
through which our troops must‘march? Whe
ther, if the French from the islands, on hearing
of the reduction of Pondicherry, should have
landed a body of troops at, Mahé, befora the ar-
rival of our squadron and land forces there, our
detachment may not run a risk of being defeated
by a aupenor Buropean force,” &c.
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Again, on the 4th of January, * The situation
of affairs, the distress we are in for. money, and
the uncertainty of what steps may be taken by
the French or the country powérs, or, in parti-
cular, by Hyder Ali, who does not scem to be well
pleased with our conquest of Pondicherry, makes
it appear to me imprudent to move from the
seat of Government at this juncture.”

And on the 14th of January, ¢“Our corre-
spondence with Ilyder Ali has not been attended
with that readiness on’ his part which we
expected from him; but I am persuaded we
should not lose sight of the object, and nothing
will so effectually bring it about as sending a
suitable person to him. A proper pretence may
be made use of, and we shall be able to judge of
his intentidas. It is better to know him for an
enémy than a doubtful friend; and I confess 1
shall bc under some apprehensions for our
detachment now proceeding to Mahé, unless we
are assured what line of conduct he .means to
observe.” When, after a renewed solicitation
from the President that Ilyder would allow an
interview to take place, the reply was decidedly
hostile, it was a subject of serious deliberation
whether the expedition should be recalled.

The President set before the Committee all
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the most important reasons for and against the
recal.  He concludes by saying, “I have ever
conmdered the alliance with Hyder Ali as our
first and principal object; in that case Mahé
would fall into our hands, of course, ax_ld every
view of the French be entirely frustrated. One
circumstance I must add, which is, «f we desist
from prosecuting the® expedition, it is probable
the factory of Tellicherry will fall into the hands
of the French.”

Sir Eyre Coote gave his opinion at length, and
concluded by saying, “ Upon the whole, as
things are at present situated, I am against re-
¢alling the expedition,” &ec.

A1l the circumstances relating to  this
affair, with the deliberations of the Council
of Fort St. George, arc fully ahd fairly
given in the first Report of the Commlttee of
Secrecy.

In the second Report of the Committee, truth
and fairness are sacrificed, and the Report be-
comes a personal censure of Sir Thomas Rum-
bold.

In the transactions relating to the 'Gun-
toor Circar, and the Nizam of the Deccan,
in regard to which charges were alleged
against +Sir - Thoma.s Rumbold in the Bill, and
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which remain to be more fully described,
Sir Thomas Rumbold was nearly concerned with
Mr. Hastings. It is a task th(,'h of necessity
devolves upon one who would” give u -true ac-
count of this portion of the history, to show,
that, among the darker shades which belong to
the character of that celcbrated man, must be
reckoned the conduct he pursued throughout the
course of those events.

When the calamity of the Carnatic war took
place, the cause of which is a problem in his-
tory never entirely solved, if the measures of
Mr. Hastings were to be exempted from all re-
proach, on another the blame must fall.

The policy Mr. Hastings had pursued, whe-
ther skilfully devised or not, had been unsuccess-
frely and, ot was carly krown to himn, thrcatened
very disastrous results; it had especially com-
promised him with the Nizam of the Deccan. In
the embarrassments in which he was involved,
Mr. Hastings allowed himself to disavow, on the
most shallow pretext, the part he had originally
taken in the aflair of the Guntoor Circar, when
it was first contemplated in 1775; and also the
formal sanction he gave to the Treaty for the
cession of it to the Company, as sul’;mitted_to.
1im by the presidency of Madras in 1779, when
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he revised each article, and added to them others
of his own.  Mr. Hastings thus prepared the
way for representing this affair as a principal
cause of the confederacy against the English,
which resulted in the invasion of the Carnatic.

It is also certain that all the accounts of those
times that have beeh transmifted to us, are to
be traced to the reﬁrcsentatiom*made by Mr.
Hastings to the Court of Directors, and sub-
sequently adopted by the Committee of Secrecy,
althongh they were contradicted hy facts and
dates that had passed through their hands, and
are still to be secen in the Appendices to the
Reports.

It is much to be deplored that Sir Eyre Coote,
who formed one of the Board of Madréls, and ¢o-
operated in the affair-of the Guntoor Cirvar,
should have been, after the invasion of the Car-
natie, so influenced by Mr. ITastings, as to follow
and support him in his assertions, and to de-
nounce this measure for a reason that sounds
strangely from Sir Eyre Coote, “that it
thwarted Tyder, who had views upon the Gun-
toor for himself.” ¥

* Supplemertary Appendix to the Second Report, and repeated

elsewhere. In private cor-espondence of the time there is much
proof tha Sir Eyre Coote was a man of most honourable and



88 OHAPTER VIIL.

Leave then the whole responsibility of this
affair upon Sir Thomas Rumbold, and admit that
it thwarted Hyder, can any further vindication
be needed for the policy of securing to the Com-
pany this important district, considered the key
of the Carnatic, and which was in fact their own,
by arming it against him”? It is known that
Hyder had it in view to extirpate the Nizam,
and make a partition of his territories: since
Hyder had no claim upon the Guntoor, the pos-
session of it by the English thwarted him, inas-
much as it stood in the way of these projects, and
of his immediate design upon the Carnatic.

But Sir Eyre Coote proceeded to a still more
extraordinary assertion. In the same letter to
the Directprs, we find him say, that “it was
kn6wn as a thing certain that at the time the
Treaty was carrying on with Bazalet Jung,
Hyder would have entered into an alliance

generous, although sometimes hasty, impulses. 1t is apparent, in-
deed, from his angry and reiterated demand, that the refusal of the
President of Madras to stnd a body-guard to Calentta from the newly-
arrived regiment, gave him great umbrage. With all allowance for
this, and for the pressurc of ditficulties otpening upon him in that
disastrous war, it is still hard to-believe that S Eyre Coote really
dictated the representations we find given in the Reports of the
Committee, and whieh were sent to the Directors, &c. ©
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offensive and defensive with us.” * Was it for-
gotten by Sir Eyre Coote, and did the Secret
Committee, in adopting 'this declaration, over-
look, that at this very time, and before this time,
the letters from the President to Ilyder men-
tioned above, requesting an interview, &c., had
been communicated to the Board, tbgether with
Hyder’s evasive replizzs ?

A history of these transactions, substantiated
by the original documents or by full references,
is subjoined.

As far as relates to the affair of the Guntoor
Circar, the words are, for the most part, those of
Sir Thomas Rumbold, and are a part of his
““Answer to the Directors + and to the Committee
of Secrecy,” of which “Answer” ment'%on has been
made. The statement commences by citing those
Articles of the Treaty between the Nizam and
the Company in 1768, which bear upon the case.

Upon the construction of these Articles, Sir
Thomas Rumbold proceeds to say, it is clear

¥ Supplemental Apperdix to -fecomd Report, No. 9, and
repeated elsewhere. .

1 It will be observed throughout the statement given from Sir
Thomas Rumbold’s narrative, the references made by him are to
the Reports of the Committee of Secrecy. The references to the
Minuted of Evidence are added by the compiler.
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‘that if Bazalet Jung should raise . disturbances,
-or give protection, or assistance, to any enemies
of the Company, the Company were at liberty
immediately to take possession “of the Guntoor
Clrcm' without any reference or appllcatmn to
the Nizam.

No one Article of the Tnﬂty with the Nizem
was so impolitic as leaving the Guntoor Circar
in the possession of Bazalet Jung. We had it
in our power to make whatever terms we pleased.
‘We had attained a decisive advantage in the
war, and, by marching a detachment of troops
towards the Nizam’s capital, we had in a manner
compelled him to sue for peace.

- The Guntoor Circar nearly joins to the Cudda-
pah country. A small portion of the Carnatic
rups betwéen them, and, stretching eastward to
the sea, contains one of the most commodious
ports on the coast, called Mootapillee; it was
there the French always landed their troops and
stores. This Circar divides the Carnatic from all
our northern possessions, which would otherwise
run in one continual chain from Cape Comorin
to Cuttach; we, therefore, by this concession
made to the Soubah, left it in the power of a
very doubtful friend to obstruct our, communica-
tion. The Guntoor Circar contains many .strohg
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‘posts and small forts in the hands of Goyern-
ment, whereas in all the other Circars the forts are
in the hands of the Zemindars ; besides which the
river Kistna boungls it to the northwards, a river
at particular times of the year broad and rapid.

In the year 1775 the Board of Madras,*at that
time under the Presidency of Mr. Wynch, were
justly alarmed by frequént letters from the Coun-
cil of Masulipatam respecting the French force
stationed inthe Guntoor, which was receiving con-
tinnal increase, and was, they represented, becom-
ing dangerous to the settlement. A reference to
the numbers 67-78, in the Appendix to the
Second Report of the Committee of Secrecy,
will show the whole correspondence, and what
passed in the year 1775 relative to the IFrench
troops and the necessity of obtaining theGuntoor
Circar for the Company."

The Committee of Secrecy observe (Second
Report, page 284) that, “In the whole course
of this correspondence, it appears that the
Government of Madras, as well as the Governor-
General and Council, never lost sight of the
Treaty of 1768 ; but, on the corﬁ;rary, that they
made the Nizam sthe principal party in the
negotiation.” " however, we examine the cor-
respondence tihat took place between the two
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presidencies, it will appear that the Governor-
General and Council are uniform in stating the
forfeiture of Bazalet Jung, and our right, in
consequence, to take possession of the Circar.

- In June, 1775, in consequence of the advices
they had reccived, the Board of Madras first
took the matter into consideration, and they
agree (vide GS, Appendi¥, Second Report) *to
endeavour at obtaining from Bazalet Jung
Mootapillee and the other villages, or, if practi-
cable, the whole Circar, at a certain reserved
rent to him, which shall be mutually agreed
upon for that purpose.” And they agree to
write to the Governor-General and C'ouncil,f'_
fully stating every circumstance. In this letter
they particularly say, “That the only mode
which ogeurs to us for obviating the damage to
ke apprehended, is to prevail upon Bazalet Jung,
if possible, to give up the port of Mootapillee for
an dadequate acknowledgment ; or, if practicable,
the whole Circar upon the same terms; or that
he will admit of its being protected for him by
the Company, he being at the expense of the
force employed" on that service. We much
doubt that he will be brought to consent to
either of the above p'ropositioml; but the evil
consequences to be feared, should ‘he cOntinué"'us_
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| heretofore to increasc his force, and by such
‘means give the Freuch a permanent footing in
the Circar, are too evident to be pointed out.”
‘On'the 5th of July, the Governor-General and
Council wrote an answer to the Madras Presi-
dent, " in which they recommend the most
spirited measures to be taken, and that the
Nizam was to be coﬁsidered, let it be observed,
only in the second instance.

“ Forr WrLLIiAM, July-5th, 1775.

“ ArTER weighing maturely the subject of the
advices, we have come to the resolution that no
time is to be lost in endeavouring to remove the
Trench from the Guntoor Circar. It is manifest
to us that thé number of foreigners entertained
there by Bazalet Jung, and the conmderahle
supply of troops, cannon, and ammunition, lately
sent there, are in consequence of a concerted
scheme with the French to secure to them the
possession of that province, and to put them in
a condition to attack our possessions in those
parts with advantage on the fitst favourable op-
portunity. At all events; we deem it highly
impolitic to- .'Ep{we the French in possession of
the port of #Mootapillee, which affords them so
free ard easy a communication with those coun-
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try powers who may be supposed to entertain
the greatest jealousy of the growing influence of
the British nation. We mean yizam al Mulek,
Hyder Ali, and the Mahrattas.

. ¢ For these reasons, and seceing that we have
the sanction of a reversionary right for interfer-
ing to sccure the independency of that district ;
we authorise you imuwdiat?*ly to take such steps
as may be necessary for that effect, and recom-
mend that you form a body of troops, if possible
in conjunction with the Nabob of Arcot, and
march them immediately to the frontiers of the
territory of Bazalet Jung. You will then ac-
quaint him that, sceing he has applied for the
assistance of foreign troops, those of the Com-
pany are come to him for that purpose, as well
as<%0 secure the reversion-of that Circar to them;
that you insist upon the immediate discharge of
all forcigners from his service; in failure of
which, you will signify to him that your troops
will take possession of his country, and that you
will endeavour by a negociation with the Nizam,
either by the offer of the whole revenues or
ﬂt]lel'W}SO, to obtain the imwediate cession of it
to the Company. Thi§ is the ncasure which
suggests itself to us at present as\ the most. ex-
pedient in this affair. We do not méan ex-
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pressly to direct it, but only to give our sanction
to your undertaking it, supposing you should
think it advisable, considering the general pos-
ture of affairs in"the Carnatic. '_
“ W. IlasTINGS,
R. BarweLry,
J. CLAVERING,
P. FranNcis,
(3. MoNSON.”*

o

Unfortunately, the recommendation of the
Council of Bcngul was not immediately followed.
Time was suffercd to pass away in consultations
with the Nabob of Arcot and unnecessary
debate. From the 4th of April, 1775, when the
subject first engaged the attention of the Presi-
dency, no reference had been made lo the Ni-
zam. The Board had considered themselves at
- liberty to treat directly with Bazalet Jung, in
the way of amicable negociation. On the 14th
~ of August, General Smith was desired to make %
return of the forces in hand ; and stated it equal
to the object, in case BazaletsJJung should not
accept the terms. Yet they hesitated to carry
into execution fhese hostile measures. Some of
‘the Board ece/ of opinion that the Nizam should

- S:cond Esport, Appendix, 7L
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be applied to in the first instance, and his influ-
ence with his brother (Bazalet Jung) desired, to
induce him to dismiss the French troops.  They
consider, moreover, that an appl’i‘czition to Bazalet
Jung would be ineffectual to secure their object,
as it might lead him to scek the further aid of
mercenaries-to resist their demand.

On the 13th of September it was resolved %o
address the Nizam, and a letter was accordingly
written to him by the President, in which com-
plaint was made of the conduct of Bazalet Jung,
as an infraction of the treaty of 1768. The letter
concluded by saying, “ When your highness
shall have considered the reversionary right
which the English have to the Murlayanagur
(or Guntoor) Circar, and that they might, con-
form&bly t6 the terms of the Treaty; take posses-
sion of that right, you will acquiesce in my
insisting upon Bazalet Jung agrecing to one or
other of these two propositions :—Fivst, to let to-
the English the whole of the Circar at an annual
rent; or, secondly, to dismiss the Europeans
from your service, and trust to the Company for
the protection of the eountry.” *

On the 13th of September, thg Presidency of
Madras also acquaint the GovernonGeneral and

* Minutes of Evidence, p. 844.
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Council of Bengal with their having written to
the Nizam, with a full statement of their rea-
sons for having doneso.* The Governor-General
and Council made reply as follows :—

“ As we observe you have addressed Nizam
Ali Cawn in the terms we had suggested for
removing the Europeans out of the Guntoor
Circar, and securing tlre reversion of that district
to the Company, we shall wait to hear the result
of that letter before we send you any further
instructions on this head.” +

During a long interval that intervened before
the arrival of the Nizam’s answer to the appli-
cation of the DBoard, the subject was again
brought forward by a motion of Sir Robert
Fletcher, then Commander-in-Chief, to this
effect :— |

“That the letter last received from the
Governor-General and Council of Bengal, under
date of October 23rd, ought not to have pre-
vented our adopting immediately the measure:
recommended in their letter of the 5th of July,
because it appears to me nothipg meore than an
unavoidable acquiescence iz the letter this Board
had written to _th'e Souhah, (i. e.,the Nizam,)
without conta‘i’éfing anything that can be con-

* Secongt Report, Appendix, No. 7. ~ t fbid., No. 75.
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strued as an approbation of ¢his Board having
declined to follow the idea recommended by the
Governor-General and Council.  Bazalet Jung’s
present preparations for war, and his correspond-
ence with the French, give me apprehensions that
every delay may add to the evil. I consider the
Nizam in his heart as wishing his brother’s
removal from the Circar; but we should not have
put the question to him.........

“ Frequent information has been received of
the prejudice we have sustained from the encou-
ragement given by Bazalet Jung to the desertion
of our Buropeans.” *. ..., ...

Other members of the Board take a similar
view :—

“We should have sent an immediate force.
Bazalet Juing has broken his Treaty. Mootapillee
is of essential advantage to us. We must resume
it upon the law of self-defence......... Let us
adopt the recommendation of Bengal,—take the

ccountry first, and make it up to Bazalet after-
wards with a rent or pecuniary equivalent.” +

This molion was negatived, as is observed in

the Report of the Committee of Secrecy, but the

* Minutes of Evidence, p. 353. .
+ Messrs. Johnson, Muckay, Jourdan, and Brook. Seccond
Report, Appendix, No. 75.
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reason is not there assigned; namely, ¢ that,
having written again to Bengal, it was deemed
expedient to wait the Governor-General and
Council’s reply.” But on the same day a second
motion was made for immediate action, when,
the Council * finding it difficult to frame a letter
agreeably to the different opinions which had
appeared in that day’s debates, it was agreed
that a copy of their proceedings be transmitted
to the Governor-General and Council for their
opinion.”

On the 20th of November, 1775, arrjved the
first answer from the Nizam; cvasive, as had
been predicted by Sir Robert Fletcher. Of
Mootapillee, not a word ; but he has desired his
brother to send away the troops, and he will
impound the revenue of . the villages allotted for
their pay. e tacitly admits that what the
letter of Madras had imputed to him, and he
now offers to redress, was a violation of treaty ;
for he says, ¢ Our treaty shall be kept to a hair’s”
breadth.”

The Board of Madras transwmit this letter,
which they represent as indirect and evasive, to
the Governor-General and Council, and wait
fheir reply. OQn the 2nd of January, 1776, Lord
Pigot hgving arrived, and taken charge of the

H
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-government of Madras, an answer was received
from the Governor-General and Council, and was
read at the Board. It was very full and con-
clusive, and is here given at length.

< Fort WILLIAM, December 11¢h, 1775.

¢ As you have resolved to suspend taking any
measures for the removal of the foreigners in
Bazalet Jung’s service until you receive further
instructions from us, we take tlie earliest oppor-
tunity of conveying to you our sentiments, to
enable you to procecd without loss of time in
this ne(;essary business. In our letter of the
bth of July last, we left it open to you to take
possession of the Guntoor Circar, unless Bazalet
Jung should immediatcly consent to dismiss all
the foreidaers in his service. Without positively
directing the measure, we authorized you to
carry it into exccution, if you should think it
advisable, considering the general posture of

-affairs in the Carnatic.

“ By the answer of the Nabob Nizam Ali Cawn
to the letter which your President wrote to him
on that occasion, we perccive he engages that his

‘brother shall remove his foreign troops from the
sea-coast to Adoni, and to stop thc revenues of
the villages allotted for their pay. If this en-
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‘gagement be fultilled, and if we are put in pos-
session of Mootapillee, the object of our first
instructions will be obtained ; if mnot, we still
continue to allow you the same latitude to take
possession of the Circar, which we gave you in
our letter of the 5th of July. In the first case,
we think it proper to assign the xlcvenues of
Mootapillee to Bazale# Jung, after defraying the
extraordinary expenses which may be incurred
by that service ; and, in the second case, to gfant
the revenues of the Circar to the Soubah, [that
is, the Nizam, or Naboh, Ali Cawn, now written
Ali Khan,| with the like reserve for (fefraying
the expenses : but in either, our yiclding up the
revenues is founded on the’ supposition that
Bazalet Jung, or Nizam Ali Cawn, respectively,
do not oppose you in these operations.”?*

In the disturbed state of the Presidency of
Madras that followed the arrival of Lord Pigot,
the matter was suffered to rest here.

* Second Report, Appendix, No. 78.
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THE GUNTOOR CIRCAR, BAZALET JUNG, AND THE NIZAM.
PROCEEDINGS AFTER THE ARRIVAL OF MR. (SIR THOMAS)
RUMBOLD AT MADRAS, IN 1778.

Ox the arrival of Mr. (not yet Sir Thomas)
Rumbold in Madras, on the 8th of February,
1778, not one step had been {aken in this im-
portant affair. The Nizam had paid no regard
to his promises: although he had engaged (as
is obscrved by the Committee of Secrecy, Second
Report, p. 23) that his brother (Bazalet Jung)
should remove the French troops, and stop
the revenues of the villages allotted for their
pay, the"engagement was not fulfilled. The
possession of Mootapillee, the first object of the
Governor-General and Council’s instructions,
was not obtained ; consequently the same lati-
“ tude from the Governor-General and Council to
take possession of the Circar still remained ; and
the giving any part of the revenues, either to
the Nizam or Bazalet Jung, was to .depend on
“ neither of them, respectively, opposing our
operations.” X ’

From the time of the arrival of Lord Pigot,
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the Government of Madras, almost wholly
engaged in attending . to the cdntentions of the
Nabob of Arcot and the Rajah of Tanjore, had
ceased to regard the growing influence of the
French to the northwards. It cannot but ap-
pear extraordinary that the Governor-General
and Council, who saw the affair in s¢ serious a
light, whose duty it was towatch over the power
of our national enemics, and fo preserve the
pcace of India, should have suffered ahove two
years to elapse without inquiring what had been
done with respect to the instructions they had
sent. But the ruinous scheme of subjecting the
Mahratta State to their views, and the conten-
tions of their own Board, in consequence of the
many expedients resorted to, distractgd their
attention from dangers, which, although at some
distance, were always to be apprehended.

If the removal of the French force in the
employ of Bazalet Jung, and the attainment of
the Guntoor Circar, had been thought objects of
so great importance by the Presidencies of Bengal
and Madras, in time of profound ‘peace, of how
much more importance must the affair have
appeared to Mr. Rumbold, with advice of a
certain war, and under all the circumstances of
the case
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Hyder Ali was known to be in alliance with
the French, and the Soubpah Nizam Al was
more in their interest than ours. Hyder had
taken advantage of our troubles with the Mah-
rattas to stretch his conquests to the northward,
and wanted only the Guntoor to open to the
French the prospect of becoming formidable in
that part of India, where their influence before
the peace was very great, and where they still
had many attached to them.

Accordingly, on the 10th of July, 1778, the
President entered a Minute on the subject
in the Military Department. So far was Mr.
Rumbold from entirely selling aside or passing
by the Nizam, notwithstanding that he had
failed i every engagement, and that the
Governor-General and -Council’s letter of the
11th of December, 1775, would have authorized
the Presidency, in conscquence of that failure, to
have possessed themsclves immediately of the
Guntoor Circar, that he particularly recom-
mended that, in the first instance, a letter should
be written to Ivim on the subject.

The Committee of Scerecy, indeed, observe at
page 24 of their Second Report that, on the 10th
of January, 1778, (a month before Mr. Rum-
bold’s arrival out in Madras,) ¢ The President
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and Select Committee expressed their conviction
of the evil tendency of the influence of the
French with Bazalet Jung.” This, however, is
a mistake, as there was then no Belect Com-
mittee. It was, as has been said, on the
10th of July, 1778, that Mr. Rumbold
entered a Minute to sthat eflect, fully stating
every circumstance thit had come to his know-
ledge relative to the French troops, and the
necessity of putting an immediate check to their
growing power. The Board concurred unani-
inc'msly in this opinion; and it was resolved that
a letter should be written immediately to the
Soubah Nizam Ali Cawn on the subject, which
was done accordingly.

The whole of the Governor’s Minutg is given
in the Appendix, No. 79, in the Second Report
of the Committee of Secrecy; but no notice is
taken in the Report of the letter written to the
Nizam in consequence *

It was resolved also that Captain Barclay, the
Commander at Ongole, be directed to stop all
Europeans going into the Gunsoor Circar, and
send them to the Presidency: .

The Nizam never answéred this letter.

. This letter to the Nizam is in the Minutes of Evidence,
p. 865.
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The siege of Pondicherry took place soun after
it was written; and he waited to see the
event.

In less than'a week after this resolution had
been taken by the President and Board of
Madras, orders arrived from England for form-
ing a Sclect Committee, with extensive powers
for transacting all political affairs on the coast
of Coromandel, and for commencing hostilities
against the French; and, if the Sclect Com-
mittee found, upon a review of the naval and
military forcc on the coast, that they were
cqual to the attempt, they were to begin with
the reduction of Iondicherry. Sir Thomas
Rumbold states, tlet Sir Eyre Coote, being
called upon before he left England, gave it as
his opinioh that the force upon the coast would
not be sufficient for the purpose.

Upon receipt of the Company’s orders, mea-
sures were taken to accomplish an object of so
great importance. Troops were called from
every part to form a sufficient army; and now
the mistaken policy of suffering the French
troops in the Guntoor Circar to remain
and strengthen themselves, as they had done,
was very manifest. Instcad of following the
spirited and proper directions of the Gqvernor-
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General and Council, the Government of Madras
had contented themselves with trifling debates
and unnecessary letters, to which they received
trifling answers and professions meaning nothing.
Without calling the chief part of the forges from
the Circars, we had not suflicient to attempt the
siege of Pondicherry; and, consequently, our
northern possessions Were subjected to some risk,
especially from the French troops under Mons.
Lally, who were ready to take any advantage of
our defeneeless situation in those parts.

They were now evidently supported by the
Government »of DPondicherry; and Mons. de
Bellecombe furnished all the officers under
Mons. Lally with commissions from the French
king. Il was thought necessary to f;orm a de-
tachment of all the remaining Llroops at the dis-
posal of the Company that could be spared from
the different garrisons to the northward, leaving
in them a scanty number of raw recruits, scarcely
enough, indeed, for the common duty. The
command was given to Major Mathews, an z;p-
proved officer, and he was ordered to wateh the
motions of Mons. Lally’s party, and to prevent
his making any irruption mto our northern ter-
ritories. Notwithstanding this detachment, Mr.
Rumbojd was not free from apprehensions of
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Mons. Lally’s party * proving too strong- for
the force at his disposal, and requested of ‘the
Governor-General a reinforcement, to insure the
safety of our northern possessions.

- It was Sir Thomas Rumbold’s impression and
belief, to the best of his recollection, that the
Select Committee of Madras wrote to the same
effcct. Mons. Lally, however, did not think
proper to risk his force against the detachment
under Major Mathews. Pondicherry fell before
the Company’s troops; and after the surrei;dér
of Pondicherry, the French factory at Mahé, and
the French force to the northward, formed the

.only interest of that nation remaining in India,
and both became objects for the attention of the
Madras Ggvernment.

- Successful measures wore taken for the reduc-
tion of Mah¢; and the removal of the French
from the borders of the Circars, by depriving
our national cnemies of the prdspect of estab-
]‘islfling a footing in that quarter, was undoubt-
"edly a point of greater consequence than even
the redugtion of Mahé. Having possession of

~ * The numbers-of the party under Mons. Lally are underrﬁted

as described by Mr. Mill ; they consisted of three thousand two

hundred and fifty, of which above five hundred .were Europeans
- —Evidences, p. 361.
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the Guntoor Circar gave a certainty of excluding
the French from any communication either with
Bazalet Jung, the Soubah, or any of the Rajahs
or tributaries to the northward. It was impos-
sible to divine that the Bengal Government
would persist in the ruinous war with the
Mahrattas, at the hazard of our own security in
every part, and under such circumstances of
hostility with the different powers of Europe as
rendered it probable the I'rench would endeavour
to recover their footing in India. )
After the surrender of Pondicherry, Bazalet
Jung sent a Vakeel to Madras, and, of his own
accord, proposed the delivering up of the Circar,
and dismissing the French troops from his serv-
ice. This was a point the two ])resi(Lcncies had
been long labouring to. obtain; and nothing but
insanity could have led the Presidency of Madras
to declinc the offer. Mr. Rumbold acquainted
the Board, on the 30th of November, with the
proposal made by Bazalet Jung, (vide No. 80,
Appendix, Second Report,) and at the same
time gave his sentiments on such articles as he
judged might form the foundation of an agree-
ment to be made with him. These articles were
transmitted to Bazalet Jung, the 22nd of De-
cember, for his consideration. A letter was
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agreed at the same time to be written to the
Governor-General and Council, advising them
of Bazalet Jung’s proposal for a Treaty with the
Company, and of the answer we had sent to
him, and desiring their opinion on the subjeet.

The part of the letter relative to the Treaty
with Bazalet Jung was as follows :— |

Extract of a letter from the Madras Presi-
dency to the Governor-General and Council,
dated December 31st, 1778.

“ ON referring to our records we observe that
in the year 1775 several letters were written to
you from this Presidency on {he subject of the
French troops in the service of Bazalet Jung,
stationed m the Guntoor Circar, and supplied
with warlike storcs thr ough the poit of Moota-
pillee. It appears, however, that this business
was not prosecuted by this Government further
than by a correspondence with Nizam Ali Cawn,
which ended in nothing. As we arc thoroughly
convinced of the necessity of removing these
troops from the service of Bazalet Jung, we have
lately taken up the subject again, and having
received certain proposdls from him relative to
the Guntoor Circar, we returned such an answer
‘to them as we thought necessary for the occa-
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sion. 'We now enclose copies of those papers
for your information. By letters from your
Presidency, dated July 5th, and December 11th,
1775, we find ample authority from you to the
former Government to proceed in cffecting the
dismission of the French troops by Treaty, or in
any other manner they might think proper. As
so much time has elapsed since, we have thought
it necessary to apply to you again on the sub-
ject, and request you will be pleased to favour
us with your sentimments upon the articles we
have proposed to Bazalet Jung, and your sanc-
tion, if you approve them, to enter into a Treaty
or agrecment with him.
“Trnomas RuMBoLD,

Eyre Coortk,

HMrcior MUNro,

J. WHITEHILL,

C. SMmiTH.”’*

The Nizam had taken no notice of Mr.
Rumbold’s letter to him of the 10th of July;

but after the reduction of Pondicherry, he was
written to again to acquaint him with that

event, and to express the Presidént’s surprise
that he had not answered his former Iletter.

* Appesdix, Szcond Report, No. 81, 82 ; Evidences, p. 369.



116 CHAPTER IX.

This produced a reply, which, however, was not
received until the 4th of February, 1779; and
this letter was still more evasive than those
preceding.*

« T persuade myself,” says Sir Thomas Rum-
bold, “I have now fully shown that it was
not possible to effect the removal of the French
through the means of the Nizam, who was him-
self a favourer of them, and that nothing was
hastily or wantonly undertaken by the Presi-
dency of Madras; but that they acted on the
most mature consideration, with the view
entirely to remove the influence of the French
from Hindostan.” |

The Governor-General and Council’s answer
to Mr. Rumbold’s letter of the 31st of Decem-
ber, is ddied the 25th of January. They per-
fectly understood at that time the full extent
of President Rumbold’s letter to them. They
make no mention themselves of the Nizam.
Bazalet Jung alone is the person to be treated
with. They comment particularly on each
article separately. Some they correct. The
letter is as follows:— -
~ “In regard to the alliance proposed to be
formed with Bazalet Jung, we highly approve of

* See Minutes of Evidence, pp. 366, 365.
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the measures in general, and leave it to you to
negotiate and finally conclude a ‘Treaty with
him. That you may be acquainted with our
sentiments, as far as the materials supplied by
you will enable us to form them,* we shall malke
such remarks upon the different articles which
you have proposed to Bazalet Jung as occur fo
us on the perusal of (Wem.

“ Firstly. Quota of troops of every denomina-
tion to be maintained by the Company for the
service of the chief, should be mentioned. And
these are recommended to be restricted as much
as possible to natives, that your European force
may not be weakened by this alliance.

“Secondly. The subsidy for them should be
fixed at the utmost expense that will probably
be incurred, and the surplus or deficichcy ought
to be on the part of the Company.

¢ Thirdly. That the troops should be confined

* Of these cautious expressions  the Governor-General  after-
wards availed himself when he denied his participation in thie
transaction ; but was there any deficiency of information? It has
been shown that the Board had in 1775 forced every eircumstance
upon his attention, and- all their difficultics with regard to the
Nizam, and he had cut the knot and repeated the recommendation
before given. By a reference to-dates, it will appear that Mr,
Hastings’s measures had already brought him into f_lifﬁr-ulty with
the Nizam; did he so early provide for future contingencies ?
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to the defence of Bazalet Jung’s country is
proper.

“ Fourthly, &ec., &c., &c.—proper,—proper,
&e.” ¥

It might have been thought incredible that a
public body, like the Council of Bengal, liable
thus to be detected from their own records,
should pretend that whin they ¢ gave their
assent to this Treaty being concluded with
Bazalet Jung, they had no more of the pro-
ceedings of the Madras Presidency hefore them
than what was contained in the letter of the
31st of December, 1778.” Yet this is what
actually happened.

¢ Before I procced 15 state what follows,” says
Sir Thomas, ““ I shall beg leave to introduce an
extract from the G overnor-General and Council’s
letter, dated October 10th, 1780, when they
began to be alarmed for the consequences of
their ill-judged Mahratta war, and the distress
they had brought upon the Company by ex-
hausting their trcasure and resources, and
dividing their forces, in the most wanton and
inconsiderate manner, and which induced them

* All the articles are thus revised and approved in detail by

the Governor-General and Council. See Appendix, Second Report,
No. 82. )
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to the mean attempt to deny their own acts, in
hopes of deceiving the public, and turning off
their attention from the real cause that threat-
ened the loss of Asia to the British Empire.” *

“It is true,” says the Governor-General,
‘““that in our reply to your letter of the 31st
of December, 1778, wherein you first men-
tioned the Treaty with DBazalet Jung, we
gave our assent to it generally, which by no
means implied that extent of latitude which you
have taken, but required to be used with reference
to_the condition on which it had our original
sanction, and which, without any declaration on
your part, or any authority expressed on ours,
ought always to be understood as the superior,
indispensable, und permanent condition, in al
negotiations; and in all acts of Government, the
faith of Treaties actnally existing.

“¢The following extract of a lctter from this
Presidency, dated October 23rd, 1775, is intro-
duced here, as proof what our sentiments then
were on this subject, and is a part of the corre-
spondence quotcd by you, as conveying ¢ ample
authority to the then Government to proceed in
effecting the dismission of the French troops

from the service of Bazalet Jung,” by Treaty, or
. £ i . . )
* Sir Thowas Rumbold’s Manuseript Defence.
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in any other manner they , might think
proper :— '

“¢As we observe you have addressed the
Nabob Nizam Ali Cawn through your Presi-
dent, in the terms we had suggested, for the
removal of the Europeans out of the Guntoor
Circar, and for the purpose of obtaining his
consent for the reversion of that district to the
Company, we shall wait to hear the result of
that letter Dbefore we send you any further
instructions on that head.””

“When, therefore, we gave our assent gene-
rally to the terms of the Trealy marked out in
your letter of Decemiber 31st, 1778, we had no
more of your procedings before us than what you
had chosen to make known 1o us in that letter,
and those formed, of ecourse, the limits of our
approbation.

“We knew not that you had wholly omitted
the Nabob Nizam Ali Cawn in the negotiation ;
we could not, therefore, authorise what you had
concealed from our knowledge.

“You have made orders for commencing
hostilities, and you have pegotiated and con-
cluded a Treaty of peace, without the consent and
approbation of the Governor-General and Council
first obtained. Bui as soon as we. were ac-
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quainted withy it, and were enabled to give it
our attention, we declared our disapprobation of
it, and then first interposed our authority, to
prevent it from taking éffect, by requiring the
instant surrender of the Circar of Guntoor.”” *

So writes Mr. Hastings towards the close of
1780. Nevertheless, the evidence and extracts
we have already given prove Incontestably that
the Governor-General and Council had distinetly
authorised the Madras Presidency to take posses-
sion of the Guntoor Circar by force, if Bazalet
Jung did not comply with the demands made on
him. Bazalet Jung had not complied with those
demands; and the Government of Madras was
empowered, after taking possession of the Clirear,
to withhold all the revenues of it, hoth from the
Nizam and Bazalet Jung, “if either of them,
respectively, gave opposition to the measure.”

Nothing can show more clearly the light in
which the Niz‘wm was held by the Governor-
General and Council, than the instructions given
to Mr. Elliot, when he was cent to treat with the
Rajah of Berar, dated July 18th, 1778, wherein
it-is said: “The Nizam Aii Cawn has always

* No. 100, Appendix to Sccond Report of Commiitee of

Seercey. The date of this Letter is October 23rd, 1780,
12

e
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been connected with the French, fnd is now in
close union with the Ministers at Poona.” *
And so little attention did the Governor-General
and Council pay to exis"(ing Treaties, that in these
instructions to Mr. Elliot, one of the conditions
by which was to be purchased the frigndship of
the Rajalr of Berar, was the rccovery of the
conquests which had been made from his country
by the Soubah Nizam Ali. “ For thc whole of
this proceeding,” says Sir Thomas Rumbold, I
refer to the Bengal Records, now in the India
House.”

Mr. Hollond, when deputed to the Nizam
from the Madras Presidency, was particularly
directed to state fully to him what had passed
relative o the Guntoor Circar with his brother,
and to endeavour to obtain his good offices for
the completion of the arrangements proposed
with respect to it. This Mr. Ilollond neglected
to do.

By these instructions Mr. Rjollond had an
explicit authority and direction to communicate
the Treaty to the Nizam, and to procure his
concurrence,t

* Sixth Report, Appendix, 1No. 70.

T Instructions to Myr. }Hollond, (Appendix, No. 85,) and also a
letter from the President to the Nizam, in which ht refers him to Mr.
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It is said ir. the Second Report, page 24, that
““ on the 22nd of April, much about the time of
concluding the Treaty with Bazalet Jung, in-
structions were given to Mr. Hollond,” &ec., &c.

Here is a double misrepresentation. The
Treaty was not signed until on or after the 12th
of May, 1779. (See Appendix, No. 95 ; also No.
105.) Mr. Hollond had left Madras in February
or March ; his instructions were completed the
25th of February. As to Mr. Hollond’s vague
assertion, ¢ that he was informed that it would
be useless for him to mention the agrecement with
Bazalet Junyg,” (which forms an allegation in the
Report,) not saying by'whom he was told, or
where, Mr. Hollond was never so told by the
President or the Committee, and his stagtement is
in absolute contradicticn to his instructions.*

Hollond for full explanation respeeting the Guntoor.—Evidences,
p. 873.

In a letter {from Bazalet Jung to the DPresident, given in the,
First Report, Appgudix, No. 36, he complains, that *the person
sent by the Company to His Iighness did not endeavour to recon-
cile this business to him, which might have set aside all his
doubts.” For further and fuller cxplanation as to Mr. Hollond’s
instructions on this and ‘other poiuts, the reader is referred to the
next chapter, p. 130.

* Appendix, No. 95; also No. 100. Also Consultations,
Appendix, No. 112.
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It is made a ground of complaint that the Treaty
was concluded in April, yet that the Governor-
General and Council were not advised of it until
December. A letter from the President and
Council, to the Governor-General, acquainting
him with troops being sent to Bazalet Jung, in
consequence of the late negotiations, which was
substantially a communication of the completion
of the Treaty, (this letter is dated-April 23rd,
1779,) concludes with desiring the Governor-
General and Council to favour the Presidency
with their sentiments and determination upon
the matter contained in it as soon as possible.
Yet to this no answer was ever sent. *

The seventh charge of the Bill, that offence
was givem to llyder by the march of the troops
over part of' his dominiois, may here be noticed,
but need not detain us long. It is sufficient to
say that the pass thr(){igh which the troops were
to go was an open pass, previously to the recent
possession obtained by Iyder; .but yet the
passage through his country had been anxiously
guarded against, and was only resorted to as a
matter of absolute mecessity ; + that there was

* Evidences, p. 385.

T “Every subaltern in the army might have known” (the
Directors say) “ that by crossing the Kistna twice, Hyder’s terri-
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no expectation of opposition from him ;* and
furthermore, that, to avoid all cause of offence,
Colonel Harpur was directed, before his march,
to give notice to Hyder’s managers of the dis-
trict, and acquaint them with his objects and
destination. The last order to Colonel ﬁarpur,
directing him to proceed, unless he should meet
with great or insumnountable obstacles, was
countermanded.

In Sir Thomas Rwmbold’s defence, as given
substantially from his own manuscript in the
last chapter, he does little more than point to
the different articles of the evidence that had
passed through the hands of the Committee of

tories might have been avoided.” But Bazalet Jung, in a letter to
Colonel Iarpur, says, (Evidences, p. 399, dated June®26th, 1779,)
I have received your arzee, in which you informed mc that you
had reccived a letter from the Governor, ordering you not to
:?arch by any road through Hyder Ali's country, or that of the
Nabob Nizam ud Dowlah, but to march by auy other road, if
there is any. The rivers are swelled. It is proper you march by*
the Gaut of Atcoer; you would otherwise be obliged to cross two
or three rivers. The road of Atcoor is now clear and free, as I
wrote to you, since Hyder’s people have left it. But as the
Governor has wrote in this manner to you, I have made inquiries for
another road. The head Hircarrdhs of the Circar havc been sent
to conduct vou,” &e., &e.
* Apnendix, No, 36,
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Secrecy. With this complete chain of evidence
before them, with a knowledge gof the corre-
spondence between the Board of Madras and
Mr. ITastings in 1775, and again in 1779, could
that Committee honestly assert that, under the
directi(;ns of the Governor-General, ¢ the Nizamn
had been made throughout the principal party
in the negotiation 27

Let it here be added, and be nofed, that the
Court of Directors were constantly advised of
the measures of the Presidency with regard to
Bazalet Jung, as is fully set forth in the
Appendix, Second Report.

‘When apprized of the conclusion of the Treaty
of 1778, the Court of Directors commended the
conduct of the Presidency as ¢ very meritori-
ous,” and ““the hints given by the Governor-
General as very judicious.”

Novertheless, one of the Resolutions brought
forward in the [Touse of Commons, declared thé
whole affair to have been “a gross breacht of so-
lemn Treaties, which stained the national honour,
and that Sir Thomas Rumbold was thereby guilty
of ahigh crime and misdemeanour.” And (o this
was added in' the allegation of the Bill, that « it
was done in a clandestine, treacherous, irregular,
and unjustifiable manner ;” but, as the framers
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of the Bill could not quite overlook that it had

been sanctioned by the Governor-Gencral, they
ascribe to him some mental reservation. * But
it doth not appear,” the Bill says, ““ that the said
Governor-General intended, by such apprphation,
to authorize concluding the said Treaty without
iirst obtaining the congent of the Nizam.”

In Mr. IHastings’s®private correspondence, as
given by Mr. Gleig, he writes this version of the
story (vol. ii., p. 381) :—*The Circar of Morta-
zanagur, (or Guntoor,) forcibly taken by the
Presidency of Fort St. George, in violation of the
Treaty of 1768, has been returned to its pro-
prietor, and other means taken to conciliate the
Nabob Nizam Ali Cawn, who was upon the point
of declaring war against us, and was the original
author and instigator of the conspiracy planned
for our extirpation.” *

* We may open these pages and find wmuch that is similar. An
account, written by Mr. Hastings to Lord Shelburne, is thus pre-
faced :-—* I will ovail mysclf of the credit which I believe I possess
with your Lordship for veracity, and of the surc means which you
have of dcteeting we if T part from 1t, by aflirming, without a long
train of argument to prove .t, that [ have never 1n a sigle instance
broken the faith of a Treaty. . .1 affirm, also, my Lord, that the
invasion of the Carnatic was not caused hy the Muhratta war, but

by the knowu weakness of the Carnatic, the dissipation of its

forces, ity poverty caused by private embezzlement, and by a
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How much truth therc was in the first of
these assertions has been shown; nor is any
more credit due to the second, ¢that the Gun-
toor had been returned to its proprictor;” or,
as it is expressed in the Bill, “ And whereas, on
the 12th of June, 1780, the Government of
Bengal wrote a letter to the Select Committee of
Fort St. George, notifyireg their resolution to
reinstate Bazalet Jung in the Guntoor Circar,
and requiring their immediate compliance; and
Bazalet Jung was accordingly reinstated,”
&e., &c.

Bazalet Jung never was reinstated; he was
shuffled out of sight. We only hear that he died
two years afterwards.

The Governor-General, no longer so scrupu-
lous of Treatics, disregarded the faith pledged to
Bazalet Jung, which might, at all events, have'
demanded some cquivalent; and the Guntoor
Circar was suflered to remain in the hands of the

.
general confederacy formed against all the governments in India,—a
confederacy whick was the avowed act of the Nabob Nizam Ali
Cawn, and declared by him to have been promplted .5y a consideratiosn
Sfor hkis own securily againststhe menaced hostililies of the Presi-
dency of Fort St. George ; that hjs reliance on the faith and justice
of this government had induced him to withdraw his support from
this confederacy,” &c.
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Nizam, even after Lord Macartney had formally
desired to address him, and claim the possession
of it for the Company.

With regard to the third assertion of Mr.
Hastings, that the Nizam was the author of the
confederacy for the extirpation of the British
from India, this part of the history is involved
in much obscurity. <Possibly the truth was
better known to Mr. llastings than to most
others, since it appears he had very carly know-
ledge of the existence of this confederacy.*

* Letter from the Governor-General to the Directors, Appendix,
Sixth Report, No. 3085,
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THE TRIBUTE TO THE NIZAM OF THE DECCAN.

It was made a charge against Sir Thomas
Rumbold, that he solicited, through his ambas-
sador, a remission or abhtement of the tribute
which the Company had bound themselves to
pay for the Northern Circars.

The often repeated story of the tribute to the
Nizam of the Deccan may be more fully under-
stood by tracing it directly from the Appendix
to the Second Report of the Secret Committee,
than in following the continuation of the manu-
seript portion of Sir Thomas Rumbold’s ¢ Answer
to the .Committee;”
Defence 'by Mr. Hardinge, which is based
upon it.

qr as it appears in the

Before entering upon this subject, attention
should be drawn to the low state of the Madras
treasury, and the difficulty experienced by that
Presidency in mecting the daily exigencies of the
service. This will .be found described, in some
degree, in the extracts from letters to Bengal,
and to the Court of Directors, which are placed
at the end of the volume.
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From the manner in which this subject has
been treated, it might be supposed that the
demand made for succour from Bengal was from
the private resources of that Presidency ; whereas
it was a point admitted, that the other, Presi-
dencies should, at their neced, be supplied from
the richer treasury of Bengal.* At this time,
when war was impending, it had been enjoined
that especial assistance should be afforded to
Madras by Bengal.

. There is one occasion on which Mr. Mill, in
his history, has leaned to the side of justice with
regard to the Presidency of Madras. It iswhere
he speaks of the exaggerated representations
made by Sir Eyre Coote, on his return to Madras,
afler the invasion of the Carnatic.

“ Not deficient, cither in the virtues which
inspire affection or command respect, Sir Eyre
Coote, as he was somewhat disposed to enlarge

* Ixtract from Letter to Bengal.— Evidences, p. 506.

“ London, August 31st, 1778.

“ As hostilities have actually commenced between Great Britain
and France, and as we think it probable that our servants on the
coast of Coromandel may stand in need of assistance from you, we
direct that you fail not dpon their application‘to send them such

. % . .
assistance 1n mowney, or otherwise, as the exigence of the case may
require.

“G. WoMBWELL,” &e.
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in praise of himself, so was somewhat apt to
indulge in complaint of others. In the letter
which, after his arrival in the Carnatic, he ad-
dressed to the Directors and to the Ministers of
the King, he drcw a picture, in the darkest
colours, not only of the weak and disastrous
‘condition into which the country was brought,
but of the negligence and* incapacity, if not the
corruption and guilt, of those servants of the
Company under whose management such mis-
fortunes had arrived. It was, however, much
more easy to point out what it was desirable
should have been performed, than, with the
defective revenue of the Presidency, to have
performed it. That Presidency had repeatedly
represented, both to the supreme Council and
to the Dfrectors, their utter incapacity, through
want of money, to make any military exertion ;
and by both had been left to strugele with their
necessities. It was the poverty of the Carnatic,
and the unwillingness of all parties to act as if |
they believed in that poverty, much more, it is
probable, than the negligence or corruption of
the government, which produced the da.}}g(-}r by
which all were how alarmed.”

But Professor Wilson, in his edition of Mr.
Mill, has not let this pass. To a certain extent
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he has been very candid; and, from his observa-
tion of the evidences in defence of Sir Thomas
Rumbold, has vindicated him from some of the
charges which Mr. Mill has brought forward,
fresh from the hands of the Directors; but had
Professor Wilson followed up this course, he
would necessarily have inculpated Mr. Hastings,
between whom and Str Thomas Rumbold there
must unfortunately be always an antagonism.
From this point, thercfore, Professor Wilson
closes his eyes upon the Nvidences, and with a
disregard of the acknowledged fact, which was
also proved and brought forward in onc of Mr.
Dundas’s Resolutions, before the ouse of Com-
mons, by a caleulation based upon the 14t twelve
yeurs,® ¢ that the revenues of the Presidency of
Fort St. George were barely suflicient {o support
a peacc establishment,” Professor Wilson mukes
this comment upon Mr. Mill’s statement, (chap.
V., p. 143) :—

“If the poverty of the Madras Presidency was
the consequence of mismanagement and corrup-
tion, it only ageravated their culpability. The
resources of the Carnatic were sufficient, if pro-
tected against the prodigality of the Nahob, the
rapacity of his Turopcag adherents, and the

%o See Parliamentary Records, vol. xxii., p. 1318.
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ignorance and venality of the Company’s ser-
vants, to have maintained the Presidency in a
posture respectable, if not formidable, to its
neighhbours.”

It was at this time of cxtreme embarrassment,
when, as was afterwards described by Sir Thomas
Rumbold in the House of Commons* “the
troops having been paid fcr one month, he knew
not from whence the moncy would be supplicd
for the month following;” that three applica-
tions were made by the Nizam for the discharge
of the tribute for the Northern Circar. This
tribute had fallen into arrears before Sir Thomas
Rumbold entered upon the governmment, and,
with thd®current tribute, amounted to a sum the
Presidency was nnable to pay.t

While some writers have sufficient acquaint-
ance with the earlier part of the history to agree,
that ¢ the view taken by the Governor,” when he
deseribed this tribute as ““unjust in its origin,’
and a sacrifice of the rights of thie Company,
was supported by reason,” yet it is said, < The
application of it can only be characterized as
dishonest and disgragceful.”

* <« The army consisted of thirty thousand men. Tt required

sevenlacs a month to pay fhc%.”
1 See Parliamentary Register, vol. xxii, p. 1285.
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Had these writers explained wherein the con-
duct of the Governor was dishonest and dis-
graceful, and what method they would have
recommended in this case, it would have set
their own opinions in a clearer light; but the
best way is now to tell the true story of the facts,
with the attendant circymstances :—

The Nizam had demanded the payment,
and it has been shown that there were not the
means of satisfying hLis demand. IFrom Bengal,
in answer to a statement of this very difficulty,
the Government of Madras were told that no
assistance could be afforded. Sir Thomas
Rumbold knew that his administration was
shortly drawing to a close. He might possibly
have evaded the payment a little longer, and left it
to his successor to battle with the difficulty. But
the time seemed favourable to throw off so heavy
a burden; altogether, if possible; or, at any
rate, to make an effort to reduce the amount.
The time appearcd favourable, hecauso, from bad
seasons, and other causes, the revenue of the
Circars had fallen so short, that this formed a
reasonable plea for urging the remission at this
Juncture. The time a,ppcf’,lrcd {avourable, also, be-
cause the Nizam had, by his conduct, infringed
the Treaty which assured this tribute to him, and

K
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the Presidency of Madras might have been
justified in withholding a payment which, they
had grounds for supposing, would furnish an
encmy with means to be used eventually against
themselves.

The method pursued was, in fact, what had
been drawn out by the original ncgotiator of the
Treaty (General Caillands.

In a letter, on record.* he stated ¢ this con-
cession to the Nizam as purely nominal, calcu-
lated more for homage and {lattcry to his pride,
than recompense or payment ; and that he”
(General Cailland) ‘¢ entertained no manner of
doubt, that when an opportunity may offer, to
make the giving il wp an act of his own, he will
no longer persist in it.” +

It had been decmed necessary, on several
accounts, to depute a p(;rson to the court of the
Nizam. The person selected for the mission was
Mr. ITollond, in whose good faith Sir Thomas
Rumbold appears to have placed entire reliance,
and also to have entertained a high opinion of
his abilitics, since much discretionary power was
intrusted to him.

* « Extract of a letter from General Caillaud, Tort St. George
Military Department, Deccmber 8th, 1766.”—Evidences, p. 397.
1 See also Mr. Iardinge’s Defence’of Sir Thomas Rumbold.
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Mr. Hollond was instructed to ‘“ explain what
had taken place with Bazalet Jung, relating to
the Guntoor Circar;’ and he was the bearer of
a letter from the President to the Nizam, in
which he was especially referred to for -a full
explanation on that point.* He was also to
endeavour to obviate amy unfavourable 1mpres-
sion that might have Deen caused by the march
of a large body of troops from Bengal, across the
country, to Surat. The conduct of the Nizam, in
having hitherto disregarded the repeated de-
mands made to him, to obtain the dismission of
the French troops from the service of his brother,
was so great an infringement of his éngagements,
that the Presidency of Madras decmed it a sufli-
cient reason to allege for the payment of the
tribute having been delayed. Mr. Hollond was
desired to give this explanation, and, at the same
time, to assurc the Nizam,  that, in full confi-
dence of every satisfaclionbeing given withregard to
the French troops, the money should be dualy paid.” |

Mr. IHollond was also directed “to convey
every mnecessary information to the Governor-
General and Council as well as to them.” TIn a
subseguent letter, Mr. IHoilond was desired *to
endeavour to engage the Soubali to take part in

Evidences, p. 374.
K 2
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defence of his brother, and to promote in him a
disposition favourable to their views.” Great
stress has been laid upon the direction given to
Mr. Hollond to make this assurance of payment,
on his first arrival at Hydrabad; while “yet
the same Board, by subsequent credentiels -to
the same Ambassador, insisted upon the remis-
sion of the tribute.” |

There is much fallacy in this representation.
The Board never did insist upon the remission;
and the conditional assurance of payment was
not inconsistent with a request that the creditor
would remit the debt. It must be remembered
that the assurance was cxpressly declared to be
upon condition ““of full satisfaction being given
with regard to the troops in Bazalet Jung’s ser-
and that this was immediately followed
by a communication from Mr. Ilollond, that the

k)

vice ;’

EFrench trcops had only left their former position,
to be received by the Nizam himself.

When apprized of this fact, a strong remon-
strance was addressed by the Council of Madras
to the Nizam. The President wrote to this
effect : “ I observe what your 1lighness has said
relative to the TFrench troops lately dismissed
from the service of Bazalet Jung. Your High-
ness may well remember that repeated applica~
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tions were made to you to -obtain their dismis-
sion; but it is certain that point was not effected
until we engaged with Bazalet Jung to supply
him with a body of our own troops, on the
express condition of his discharging ,every
Frenchman in his service. Iaving taken so
much pains to remove the people of that nation,
with whom we are at War, from the territories
of Bazalet Jung, I cannot bhelp expressing my
concern, that thiese same people should find pro-
tection and service from your IMighness. Our
wish was, that they should have been dispersed,
and sent out of the country; but if your High-
ness entertains them, they are very little, if any
thing, further removed from wus, than they were
at Adoni; and by being kept together in your
Highness’s country, they are nearly in the same
condition to do us mischief. I beg your High-
ness will understand me. , I have the utmost
confidence in your attachment to the Company,
but T fear it is not in your power to prevent
these people corresponding and intriguing with
their countrymen, to our prejudice; and as it is
not conformable to the Treaty, that your High- _'
ness, who is in alliance with the Company,
should openly encourage and protect their ene-

mies, I kope you will cause them to be sent -
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out of the country, whick will be a strong mark
that your Ilighness desires to live on terms of
the strictest friendship with the Company.” *

Mr. Tollond was also enjoined to urge, ‘ that
as the French were then the avowed encmies of the
British nation, they should be directed to proceed
to the sea-coast, that we might send them, with
others of the same nation, now our prisoncrs, to
their native country.” ¢ We desire you will use
your endeavours to effect their removal,” says the
President to Mzr. Ilollond, ¢ since we cannot but
consider them now in the same point of view
nearly as when they were employed in the service
of Bazalet Jung.” t

It may be affirmed, that had the negotia-
tion not been wrested out of the hands of the
Presidency of Madras, and had Mr. Hollond been
guided by them, and pursued their instructions

* Tividences, p. 425.

T See a letter 11 Bengal Seeret Correspondence.

Extract from a letter from the Nabob of Arcot.—Evidences,
p. 432.

* The conduct of the Nabob Nizam Ali Cawn wears an unfriendly
appearance, since he las positively refused to dismiss tne French
from his services, and, on fhe contiary, hasescttled a lac of rupees
per month for the pay of that body, together with five thousand
country infantry attached to them; and, piacing the greatest
confidence in them, makes them the advanced body of kis army.”



